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Department Chiefs 

 

For many decades, the fire chief was elected by members of the Edgerton Fire Department, and then 

the department would petition the Edgerton City Council to appoint that person as Chief.  The fire 

company would direct the chief to appear at the city council meetings to make requests on behalf of the 

fire company. 

Every year, at the first meeting in January, the members of the department would elect officers of the 

organization, including the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, as well as the Chief, Foreman, 

Hook and Ladder Captain, Hose Captain and Trustees. As a private organization, these officers ran the 

meetings for the fire department. Once elected the chief generally remained in that position until he 

resigned (or potentially was voted out by the membership). This was a common practice in volunteer 

fire departments up to the late 1900s or early 2000s.  A small group of departments still practice it 

today. 

In meeting minutes of April 15, 1895, the members passed a motion to petition the city council to retain 

the present chief, George Price. In 1896 they petitioned for an assistant chief as well as an assistant 

engineer. It was noted in meeting minutes from 1901 that the chief could select his assistant chief, 

either from inside the department or not.   

While the membership voted in January, the appointments by the city in the early years were usually 

made in April.  The City of Edgerton fiscal year ended on March 30th, so the April appointment 

corresponded with other council elections and appointments for the new fiscal year.  In April, 1894, 

Ordinance No. 38 established that the fire chief and engineer, along with the city clerk, city attorney, 

street commissioner, physician, marshal, night watchman, and special police shall be elected by ballot 

by the Common Council at the first regular meeting in May of each year. 
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When the original “Edgerton Steam Fire Engine Company No. 1” was chartered in August of 1885, the 

company elected the first chief, C. Wes. Burdick, along with the foremen, engineer, secretary, treasurer 

and firemen. 

 

 

The City Council approved Burdick’s appointment at their August 13th meeting, for a term ending on May 

1st. 

 

The next year on April 14, 1886 the City Council approved E. F. Sherman as chief. 

 

In 1887 and 1888 A. S. Flagg was appointed chief on the recommendation of the fire department.   

 

 

This practice of the members of the fire company electing a chief and recommending that person to the 

city council continued for over a century.  
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The City of Edgerton Police and Fire Commission had the responsibility to hire the Fire Chief, although it 

was noted in the Edgerton Reporter in a January 1989 issue, that the volunteer firefighters continued 

the tradition of electing a chief even though the Commission had already named James “Jim” Neal as 

Chief. Fortunately, the volunteers elected Jim as well. 

When the Edgerton Fire Protection District was formed in 1992, the District Board was then responsible 

for the hiring of employees, including the chief, for the fire department. The chief remained a volunteer, 

elected by the volunteer firefighters, and the District Board continued to select whoever the firemen 

elected as chief until 2008 when the chief and deputy chief positions became full-time paid staff.  Then 

the board began to interview, select and hire the fire chief of their choice. 

 

The pages below provide a background on each of the chiefs that served the Edgerton Fire Department. 

As noted in the biographies of the former chiefs, many of them were leaders in the community--either 

as business owners, leaders in their churches, or leaders in other civic organizations. Many of the 

members of the fire department were also businessmen and involved in civic activities.  
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Below is a list of Fire Chiefs and the years they served.  More information on each chief follows this. 

Date Name Notes 

August 1885-April 1886 C. Wes. Burdick Chief of newly chartered “Edgerton 
Steam Fire Engine Company No. 1” 
August 1885 

April 1886 – 1887 Ed. F. Sherman  

April 1887 -1889 A. S. Flagg  

1890-1891 Unknown at this time  

1892- 1893 (possibly) 
1894-1895 

George W. Price Chief of the newly re-organized Edgerton 
Fire Co. on 2/1/1894. Was chief of the 
old company for at least a couple of 
years prior to that. 

1896-1908 (June) George W. Hargraves Appointed chief on January 6, 1896, 
resigned as chief in June, 1908. 

1908 (June)-1914 (April) Henry Harvey Recommended to the City Council to be 
appointed chief, replacing George 
Hargraves when he resigned. 

1914 (April)-1916 George L. Ogden  

1917-1921 John Ruosch Resigned at the end of 1921 with 
numerous members of the department. 

1922 –1929 (April) Hubert Arthur  

1929 (May) -1932 Harry Maltpress Hosted Wisconsin State Fire Tournament 
in 1929. 

1933 – 1938 Unknown at this time  

1939-1951 Lyman “Lime” Wood  

1951, 1952 Henry “Hank” Schieldt    

1953-1955 Unknown at this time  

1956, 1957 Thorwald “Tully” Gunness  

1958 to 1978 Robert Stricker Sr. Longest serving chief. 

1978 to 1981 Norman “Nort” Yeske  

1981 to 1985 Charles Edwardson  

1986 to 1992 James Neal Also started Ambulance Service in 1970. 

1992 to 1996 Mark Backes  

1997 to 2001 John Sherman   

2002 to 2007 John Gietzel  

2008 to 2016 (March) Brian Demrow First full-time paid chief. 

2016 to current Randall Pickering  
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C. Wes. Burdick   

Served as Chief from August 1885 to April 1886. 

The City of Edgerton was incorporated in 1883. It took a couple of years and several votes to establish a 

Fire Department in 1885 (refer to “Origins of the Edgerton Fire Department” document for more detail 

on establishing the department).  Members of the Edgerton Athletic Association formed the first Fire 

Company in February, 1885, and met throughout the spring and summer to finalize the Fire Company.  

On August 14, 1885, they formally established a Fire Company and named C. Wes. Burdick as the Chief.  

 

At a meeting on August 13, 1885, the City Council approved his appointment as chief for a short term 

ending May 1, 1886. 

 

Charles Wesley “Wes” Burdick was born about 1845 in Almond, New York.  His family moved to the 

Town of Fulton, Wisconsin when he was an infant, moving soon after to Johnstown.  His father, Nathan 

D. Burdick, was known as the Father of Johnstown and served as treasurer for two years and sheriff for 

six years.  After 18 years in Johnstown the family moved back to the Town of Fulton.  
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Wes was married to Mary E. Crandall of Milton in 1875.  They had four children, including Janie, Mable 

C. and Laderna M.  The tombstone for Laderna says “only son of C.W. & M.E. Burdick”.  

Wes Burdick worked as a blacksmith in Edgerton, first partnering with Herman Lidicker in1883, and later 

partnered with Thomas Westlake in the blacksmithing business in 1884. He was also in charge of the 

fireworks for the 4th of July celebration in 1884.   

On October 30, 1884, he fell on a new city sidewalk and broke his leg.  He sued the City and a year later 

ended up settling out of court for $250. 

       

Tragedy struck the Burdick family in 1885 and 1886, when one of his children died of scarlet fever in 

1885 and the other three died a year later from the same disease.  Mary was so upset that she took all 

the children’s clothes and playthings outside in a pile in the yard and then burned them.  After that she 

packed her trunk and left her husband to go to the Dakotas. When Wes came home to the empty house 

he sat down and cried. The story was published in the July 16, 1886 issue of the Wisconsin Tobacco 

Reporter. 
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After his wife left him he went to work in Chicago. By 1889 he had moved to Huron, South Dakota, 

although it is not clear if he got back together with his wife, Mary.  In 1895 was living in Willow Lake, 

Minnesota, although two years later in 1897 he was back in South Dakota, according to his mother’s 

obituary then. At the time of his death, we are told his family had recently left Willow Spring, South 

Dakota and moved to Idaho, although he was back in South Dakota on business when he died of 

pneumonia. The only notice of his death that we’ve found was a social note in the January 6, 1905, issue 

of the Wisconsin Tobacco Reporter, mentioning they had received word of his death that week.  He 

could’ve died in late December, 1904, or very early January, 1905.  
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Ed. F. Sherman  

Served as Chief from April 1886 to April 1887. 

Ed. F. Sherman was named Fire Department Chief by the City Council on April 13, 1886. 

 

Although Ed had his share of health issues in that first year.  Shortly after being named chief in April he 

went out on a sailboat on Lake Koshkonong and broke his arm.   

   

 

Then in May he came down with rheumatism and was laid up for a couple of months. 

May  28, 1886:    

June 11, 1886:  

June 25, 1886:  
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A.S. Flagg 

Served as Chief from April 1887 to April 1889. 

A.S. Flagg was named to the Chief’s position in May, 1887 and 1888.  (Nothing was found in 1889 so he 

may have continued?) He was also on City Council at one point. 

He owned a metal working business and a hardware store. 

      

 

 

Abner S. Flagg was born December 13, 1851, in Princeton, New Jersey, and grew up in Lancaster, 

Wisconsin.  He married Edith Coon in 1882 and had two children. 

He died September 18, 1923, and is buried at Fassett Cemetery 

(https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/114371734/abner-s-flagg).  

  

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/114371734/abner-s-flagg
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George W. Price 

Served as Chief from 1892 (or earlier) to April 1895. 

George W. Price was first named chief of the department in the early 1890s. 

When the department was incorporated in 1894 he was again named chief of 

the newly re-organized department, effective February 1, 1894 and continued 

through 1895.   

The department was re-organized in 1893-1894 “on a more substantial and 

permanent basis” and the “move is in the interest of a more efficient fire 

department” (The Wisconsin Tobacco Reporter, October 20, 1893). He was part 

of the new charter, having signed the “Articles of Organization” in October, 

1893.  This appeared to be a bit of a tumultuous time with a lot of turnover 

among members of the fire department, as well as the leaders. At one time he 

was identified as the first fire chief in Edgerton in 1883, and while he is the 

first chief of the officially incorporated department in 1894, there was no 

department yet in 1883 and we see that C. Wes Burdick was the first named 

chief of the privately organized fire company in 1885. 

This photo from the June 22, 1983 Edgerton Reporter shows him in uniform 

although these uniforms weren’t purchased until 1899 so this was probably taken after that time. 

He was born in Berks County, Pennsylvania in 1837. He married Fayette D. Howe in 1858, and they 

moved to Wisconsin in 1861. They had seven children. 

He was a carpenter by trade and became a prominent builder and contractor in Edgerton. He helped 

build the new office for the Wisconsin Tobacco Reporter in 1884, as well as Bentley’s warehouse shortly 

after. In the summer of 1887 when downtown Marshfield, Wisconsin, was destroyed by fire, he was one 

of several people from Edgerton who went to Marshfield to help them rebuild.  

He was also prominent in the Mason and Odd Fellow orders and served as alderman for his ward for 

several terms, including president of the City Council. As alderman in 1886, he was named to the 

Committee on Fire Department.  

He died on June 4, 1912 and is buried in Fassett Cemetery. 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/88298528/george-w_-price 

 His obituary is in the Wisconsin Tobacco Reporter, June 7, 1912 issue, page 5. 

 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/88298528/george-w_-price
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George W. Hargraves 

Served as Chief from January 1896 to June 1908. 

The department petitioned the City of Edgerton Common Council to 

appoint George W. Hargraves as chief on January 6, 1896.  His name 

appears occasionally throughout the years in the meeting minutes as 

Chief.  Again in May, 1908, the department recommended to the council 

that he be appointed Chief.  Although he resigned as Chief the following 

month on June 15, 1908. His wife Mary died six months later.  It is 

presumed he was the chief throughout all the years from 1896 to June 

1908 as there was no other reference to anyone else as chief. 

He was born March 2, 1850 in Juneau, Wisconsin.  He married Mary 

Camenga in 1877 and they lived in Juneau until 1883 when they moved to 

Edgerton.  They had two daughters—Clara and Norma.  Both George and 

Mary were very active in the Baptist Church until it disbanded, and then they joined the Congregational 

Church and were active in that church.   

In addition to the fire department, he also served on the City Council, and he “could always be 

depended on to stand firmly for the right.” 

He was a carpenter and “his efficiency and skill as a carpenter are shown in many of the homes in 

Edgerton.”  He too, was involved with the building of the new office for The Wisconsin Tobacco Reporter 

in 1884 with George Price (that building was on Fulton street, and no longer exists).  He also helped 

building the Edgerton School in 1892 as well as Child High School in 1906. 

He died unexpectedly on March 11, 1914, while still a member of the department.  Notice of his death 

was in the March 13, 1914 issue of the Wisconsin Tobacco Reporter and his obituary was in the 

following issue on March 20, 1914. 
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Henry Harvey 

Served as Chief from June 1908 to April 1914. 

Henry Harvey was recommended to the City Council to be appointed chief, replacing George Hargraves 

when he resigned as chief in 1908. He served as chief until April 20, 1914 when he submitted his 

resignation to the City Council. He was a member of the Fire department from February 18, 1895 to 

April 7, 1919. 

 

 

Not much is known about him.  There is a Henry L Harvey, born 1864, died 1956, buried at Fassett 

Cemetery in Edgerton, however it is believed chief was Henry H. (not Henry L.), although further 

confirmation is needed. 
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George L. Ogden 

Served as Chief from 1914 to 1916. 

 George Lee Ogden served as Chief from 1914 through 1916.  He was a 

member of the department from 1887 through 1916 and served in many 

roles. He was president of the department from 1892 to January of 1894.  

The department was re-organized in late 1893, and the new organization 

took effect February 1, 1894 with new officers elected.  He became captain 

of the Hook & Ladder Company for the remainder of 1894. He was Foreman 

from 1895 through 1913. In October, 1912, he was recognized for 25 years of 

service. 

He was born in Milton, Wisconsin, on December 6, 1860.  He married Alice 

Bagley from Milton. He died on May 19, 1922 from a severe appendicitis 

attack, and is buried in Fassett Cemetery. 

(https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/127925912/george-lee-ogden) 

His obituary is in the Wisconsin Tobacco Reporter, the May 26, 1922 issue, page 5. 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/127925912/george-lee-ogden
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John C. Ruosch 

Served as Chief from 1917 to 1921. 

John Carl Ruosch first joined the fire department on March 1, 1897.  He was 

a member for 25 years and served as Chief from January 1917 through 1921. 

Prior to that from 1900 to 1916 he was the Captain of the Hook and Ladder 

Company. In November, 1921, Chief Ruosch and about 15 members of the 

department resigned their positions.  There are no meeting minutes from 

that year, and nothing in the newspaper that directly points to any issues 

within the department.  Although 1921 saw quite a few changes as the post- 

World War I world was developing.  One of the developments was that the 

automobile was becoming quite common.  In September 1921, the City Council approved the purchase 

of the first motorized fire truck. That month also saw a civilian killed and several firemen injured by an 

automobile while responding to a fire and having to manually pull the hose cart. The department had 

been having problems with curious citizens rushing to the fire station when there was an alarm, blocking 

the streets with their cars and hindering the fire department just to see what was going on. 

His last name is spelled ‘Rousch’ almost as often as it is spelled ‘Ruosch’ in fire department documents, 

and even in the newspaper announcement of his obituary. His gravestone and obituary use the spelling 

with the ‘u’ before the ‘o’, and his signature in the chiefs “Record of Adjustments” books has the ‘u’ 

before the ‘o’. 

He was born in 1865, near Watertown, and came to Edgerton as a young man.  He married Bertha Knoll 

in 1888 in Edgerton and they had eight children. She died August 18, 1908.  

He worked as a contractor, building homes, businesses and churches. He served as president of a 

vocational school that was established here and was on the Fassett Cemetery board. He was also a 

president at St. John’s Lutheran church for several terms. 

He died on March 15, 1952, following a four-month illness, and is buried at Fassett Cemetery with his 

wife and an infant son. (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/28162505/johann-carl-ruosch) 

See his obituary in the March 20, 1952 issue of The Edgerton Reporter , page 1. 

  

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/28162505/johann-carl-ruosch
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Hubert F. Arthur 

Served as Chief from January, 1922 to May, 1929. 

Hubert F. Arthur joined the department on March 15, 1909 and was a member 

until 1956. 

He was born in 1882 in Fulton Township and married Catherine McDonald.  

He co-owned the “Hain, Livick and Arthur” hardware store along with Frank Livick 

and Harry Hain (also members of the department), having purchased it in 1913 

from the J. D. Hain Estate, managed by sons Ed and George Hain. He was also a 

member of the Thibeau Hunting Club. 

He died on May 11, 1959 and is buried in Fassett Cemetery. 

(https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/45383285/hubert-f-arthur). 

The fire department turned out in uniform as a body to pay their respects. All of his pall bearers were 

members of the fire department. His obituary is on page 1 of The Edgerton Reporter , May 14, 1959 

issue. 

                           

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/45383285/hubert-f-arthur
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Harry Maltpress  

Served as Chief from 1929 to 1932.  

John Harry Maltpress joined the fire department in March, 1915 and served as 

chief from May 1929 through 1932. He worked his way up the ranks, starting 

in 1916 as the Assistant Hose Captain for two years, then Hose Captain for four 

years, First Assistant Foreman for two years, Foreman for five years, then Chief 

for about four years. He was on the department for a total of 26 years. 

He was born in 1891 in Edgerton.  He married Bessie Henry of Lancaster in 

1913, and they had one daughter, Marion.  Marion and her husband, Laverne 

Bobb, had a daughter, Nancy, who married Everett Dickinson.  Harry’s 

granddaughter, Nancy Dickinson, was very involved in the EMS service for 

Edgerton for 37 years, and served as Secretary of the Edgerton Fire Protection 

District Commission.  Nancy’s granddaughter, Allison, continued the family 

tradition, having volunteered as an EMT for the Edgerton Fire Protection 

District. 

Harry was employed at the Highway Trailer plant in town. He was also a member of the Knights of 

Pythias, a fraternal organization that embodied loyalty, honesty and friendship. 

He died suddenly on July 23, 1941, as a result of a sun stroke. He is buried in Fassett Cemetery with his 

wife. (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/29120011/harry-maltpress). News of his death was on 

the front page the July 24, 1941 issue of the Wisconsin Tobacco Reporter , and his obituary was in 

the following issue on July 31, 1941. 

 

 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/29120011/harry-maltpress
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Lyman “Lime” Wood 

Served as Chief from 1939 through 1950.     .  

Lyman Wood was a member of the Edgerton Fire Department for 41 years, 

serving as chief from January 9, 1939 to January 8, 1951.  He was the Second 

Assistant Foreman in 1911-1912 and 1923, president in 1917 and 1922, and First 

Assistant Foreman in 1924 through 1928.  

He was born in Milton in 1873. In 1889 he married Olive Alverson of Indian Ford.  

They resided in Edgerton for 55 years.  

He worked for Bloch Brothers Tobacco Company for more than 25 years. He was 

also a member of the Knights of Pythias, the Thibeau Hunting Club, and was on 

the Edgerton Baseball team in the early 1900s. 

He died June 24, 1956 at the age of 83. His obituary is the June 28, 1956 issue of The Edgerton 

Reporter . 
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Henry P. Schieldt  

Served as Chief in 1951 and 1952 (at least). 

Henry P. “Hank” Schieldt succeeded Lyman Wood as chief, serving in 1951 and 

1952, and may have been chief for a year or two after.  He was on the 

department from March 1937 to April 1974. 

He was born in 1911 in Edgerton, and married Martha Mielke. He was the 

Superintendent for Fassett Cemetery from 1939 until he retired in 1976. He was 

also a city alderman, a Rock County Supervisor, and a member of St. John’s 

Lutheran Church. 

The centennial celebration in June 1983 had a car in the parade for former chiefs 

and Schieldt’s name was included, however he was not able to make it. 

He died July 30, 1983.  The pall bearers were members of the fire department, and another member of 

the department, Dale Bieck, was the soloist at his funeral.  He is buried at Fassett Cemetery 

(https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/81523254/henry-p-schieldt).  

His obituary was in an August, 1983, issue of the Edgerton Reporter. 

 

 

 

 

  

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/81523254/henry-p-schieldt
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Thorwald A. Gunness  

Served as Chief from 1955 to 1957 (possibly a year or two earlier as well). 

Thorwald “Tully” Gunness was born in Edgerton, Wisconsin, on November 4, 

1903. He played on the Edgerton High School football team and after 

graduation was a volunteer coach for the 1927 championship football team. 

He married Margaret Heinig on August 14, 1937, in Almond, Wisconsin. 

He worked for the Police Department in Edgerton from 1950 to 1968, retiring 

as a sergeant.  He was a member of the Fire Department from 1933 to 

November 1959. He also served on the City Council and the Board of 

Education. 

He died on April 25, 1973, after a long illness, and is buried at Jenson 

Cemetery in Edgerton 

(https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/59214887/thorwald-a-gunness).  

His obituary is on the front page of the April 26, 1973 issue of The Edgerton Reporter . 

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/59214887/thorwald-a-gunness
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Robert Stricker Sr. 

Served as Chief from January, 1958 to January, 1978. 

The longest serving chief, Robert Henry Stricker Sr. was chief for 20 

years from January, 1958, to January, 1978. He was on the 

department nearly 44 years, from July 1934 to January 1978. 

When he started as chief, the department only had two trucks—a 

1921 American LaFrance pumper and a 1929 Pirsch pumper.  By 

the end of his tenure the department had eight trucks—a ladder 

truck, three pumpers, three tankers, and a brush truck.  

Chief Stricker often provided guidance and instructions at the 

monthly membership meetings to improve the skills and 

knowledge of the firemen, such as requiring them to learn how to 

use a new resuscitator or the new foam generator, having the men 

report to a training school in Janesville, going to the station after 

the meeting to show changes in equipment on the truck, 

reminding them to get their inspection cards in on time, warning them about driving responsibly to fire 

calls, encouraging the men to help with the remodeling as well as maintenance of fire equipment.   

In 1970, Stricker organized a “museum” of EVFD artifacts in the 2nd floor meeting room of the original 

fire station/city hall at 16 Burdick Street. Those artifacts were moved to the new station in 1993 and are 

still part of the department’s historical display. 

He was born in January 1912, and married Beatrice Bussey in 1935.  He was a carpenter and owned 

Stricker Construction Company. He was also a member of the United Methodist Church, the Lions Club, 

and served on the Park Board. His grandson is professional golfer Steve Stricker. 

He died in December 1985 of a heart attack.  Edgerton Fire was paged to his home for a rescue call and 

the firemen transported him to Edgerton Hospital, where he was pronounced dead. 

He is buried at Albion Prairie Cemetery. (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/41056828/robert-

henry-stricker). His obituary is in the Wisconsin State Journal , December 23, 1985 issue. 

 

  

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/41056828/robert-henry-stricker
https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/41056828/robert-henry-stricker
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Norman Yeske 

Served as Chief from January, 1978 through 1980. 

 Norman “Nort” Yeske served as chief from 1978 to 1981. He had been 

an assistant chief to Bob Stricker prior to that.  He was on the 

department from April 1942 to January 1981. 

He was born in 1914 in Edgerton and married Doris Holtan in 1933. 

They had one daughter. 

He worked for Highway Trailer as a plant manager. 

He served four terms as mayor and many terms as city councilman for 

the City of Edgerton. He served on nearly every council committee, 

board, and commission in the 34-plus years with the city.  

He was vice president of Trinity Lutheran Church and president of the 

Towne Country Club. 

He died on November 22, 1994, and is buried at Fassett Cemetery 

(Norman Yeske (1914-1994) - Find a Grave Memorial) 

 

 

 

 

  

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/114783423/norman-yeske
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Charles E. Edwardson 

Served as Chief from January, 1981 through 1985. 

Charles E. Edwardson joined the department in 1953, moved out of 

town a year later, and then rejoined the department in 1958.  He 

served for 29 years, retiring in 1987.  He was first elected chief on 

January 12, 1981, having served as second assistant chief the prior 

year. 

Charlie was employed by the City of Edgerton, working for the Streets 

Department. 

He was born in Edgerton in 1926. He married Marjorie Wescott in 

1947.  He died in 2004 and is buried at Fassett Cemetery.   
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James Neal 

Served as chief from January, 1986 through 1991. 

James “Jim” Neal volunteered for the Edgerton Fire Department for 

28 years and served as assistant chief for many years. 

He was born on June 30, 1943 in Saginaw, Michigan, grew up in 

Spokane, Washington, and lived in Ohio during his teen years.  From 

the time he was a small boy, he wanted to be a firefighter.  His 

neighbor was a firefighter and both Jim and his brother became 

firefighters, and eventually fire chiefs (his brother was chief in Baileys 

Crossroads, Virginia). 

He married Mary Margaret Ford in 1967, in Fairmont, West Virginia.  

They had three children.  Mary was an RN working at a hospital in 

West Virginia.  Jim had become sick and needed hospitalization, which 

is where he met Mary and, as they say, the rest is history.  They moved to Edgerton in 1969.  Mary 

worked at the Edgerton Hospital emergency room and was a volunteer EMT in Edgerton for about 10 

years. 

In 1970, Jim and Gene Gruna created the Edgerton Ambulance Service. Prior to this, Bruni Funeral Home 

ran an ambulance service that was basically for transportation to a hospital.  Jim started with his own 

Buick Station Wagon serving as the ambulance, then bought a Cadillac station wagon as a second 

ambulance.  He developed the ambulance service into a modern day service with all the first aid supplies 

and equipment to treat injuries.  After traipsing through winter snow down long farm driveways, Jim 

used his innovative and mechanical skills to develop a gurney on skis to carry patients on the snow.  He 

had used a [Stokes-type] basket and attached it to cross-country skis. In 1977 they decided to sell the 

service to Kutz Ambulance in Fort Atkinson, who continued to provide service for Edgerton.  Both Jim 

and Gene had full-time jobs (Jim worked for General Motors in Janesville), and running the ambulance 

service had become too much to handle as well.  

In the 1970s, firefighters still needed a sponsor and Chief Bob Stricker sponsored Jim to become a 

member of the fire department, and for a time Jim was the Assistant Chief under Chief Stricker. Both 

men were highly regarded as excellent chiefs.  Jim believed in prevention and planning.  He was involved 

in the fire prevention programs at the schools, and often wouldn’t sleep at night, worrying about how to 

save the old historic buildings downtown if any of them caught fire. Even though he couldn’t save the 

Carlton Hotel itself, his pre-planning limited damage to the buildings around it. 

One of Jim’s hobbies was to build half-scale fire trucks, which won awards at national shows. Jim built 

two trucks and made every single item on the trucks at exactly half-scale.  One was as Ahrens-Fox model 

and the other a Pierce model.  The Ahrens-Fox is at the Ephraim Fire Department museum in Door 

County, Wisconsin.  According to former Ephraim Fire Chief Niles Weborg, Jim’s son, Michael, lived in 

Bailey’s Harbor where Jim stored this half-size truck.  Jim was in Minnesota when Michael had to call 

him to inform him that the building where the truck was stored had caught on fire.  Jim collapsed of a 

heart attack and was taken to a hospital. The truck did not sustain much damage—just the roof was 

affected and the truck was still in good shape.  Sadly, Jim passed away about a week later. 
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Jim died on May 21, 2006, and is buried at Fassett Cemetery (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/). 

His obituary is in the May 24, 2006, issue of the Edgerton Reporter. 

     

https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/59214887/thorwald-a-gunness
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Mark Backes  

Served as chief from January, 1992 through 1996. 

Mark J. Backes joined the fire department in July, 1977.  He served as 

assistant chief under Jim Neal for a few years, and was elected as 

chief in 1992, the same year the Edgerton Fire Protection District 

was formed.  He retired from the department on May 8, 2006. 

He remembers when he first joined the department that the firemen 

all wore rubber coats and rubber boots.  A set of two coats and 

boots were stored on the back of the engine, and the two firemen 

who rode on the back would wear whatever size coats and boots 

were there. They would stand on the back bumper and hold on to 

the back of engine with a strap around them to help secure them. 

Mark had been hired by the City of Edgerton as a Driver/Dispatcher for the fire department a few 

months before being elected chief.  After the District took over, he was also hired by the District as a 

full-time Driver/Dispatcher. 

In the early 1990s, the 9-1-1 system was being developed and implemented in Wisconsin.  Mark worked 

with Rock County to help get it going.  Edgerton had their own dispatchers (Mark being one of them) 

and other communities relied on the Sheriff’s office to dispatch calls.  

He realized that when there was a fire, his job as a driver did not allow him to perform the duties of a 

chief on the scene properly, so he requested that he not be considered for chief in 1997.  

Edgerton’s first female firefighter (Melanie Fitzsimmons) joined the department in 1995, while Mark was 

chief.  He noted that she was a good firefighter, and was accepted by the men right away because she 

was so good. 
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John Sherman 

Served as chief from January, 1997 through 2001. 

John M. Sherman was elected as a member of the fire department in 

March, 1981, and served until September, 2005.  He was the chief 

from 1997 to 2001.  He retired from the department in 2005. 

According to John, the year he was elected chief was the one year he 

did not attend the January meeting where the chief was voted on.  

John’s daughters had a band concert every year on the same night as 

the association meeting and he always had missed their concerts, and 

that year John had decided to attend their concert.  After the concert 

he walked into the station and was greeted “Hello Chief!” and 

discovered that in his absence he had been voted the new chief.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

John worked for Dana Corporation. John is married to Julie and they have two daughters. 

In 2015 John started serving on the District board of commissioners, as a representative for the City of 

Edgerton. In 2017 he was elected president of the board. 
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John Gietzel 

Served as chief from January, 2002 to December, 2007. 

John Gietzel joined the fire department in July, 1991.  He served as 

assistant chief under John Sherman for four years before being elected 

chief in 2002.  He was the training officer for six years, and was the 

vice president of the Rock County Fire Officers Association. He created 

the first replacement plan for replacing vehicles over time. He resigned 

in December, 2007, after dealing with difficulties within the 

department.  A long-standing legal battle over the driver-dispatcher 

positions created tensions in the department. John lobbied the District 

Board to make the chief an appointed position “so the chief does not 

have to worry about always pleasing the majority of the volunteers in 

order to be elected.” 

 

  



History of the Edgerton Fire Department 

Chiefs  36 of 40 

Brian Demrow 

Served from January, 2008, to March, 2016. 

Brian L. Demrow became a member of the fire department in June, 

1995. He worked his way up the ranks, serving as training officer, 

captain, assistant chief and deputy chief, before being elected chief 

in January, 2008. 

In April, 2009, he was hired as the first full-time fire chief for the 

Edgerton Fire Protection District. (See article below from the April 8, 

2009, issue of the Edgerton Reporter).  He served as chief until his 

resignation on March 9, 2016. 

He was born and raised in the Edgerton area, and was a graduate of 

Edgerton High School.  He worked as a mechanic at Johnson Tractor 

and later as an operator in the Edgerton Public Works Department. 
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Randall L. Pickering (2016 to present) 

Served as chief from 2016 to present (2023 and beyond). 

Randall “Randy” Pickering served as fire chief from 2016 to the 

present. After serving with the Fitchburg Fire Department he and his 

wife Ruth moved to Edgerton to build a new retirement home, on 

land they had owned for 15 years in the Town of Fulton.  Randy, who 

grew up in Janesville, joined the Edgerton department in January 

2014 as the Safety Officer.  When Brian Demrow resigned in March, 

2016, Randy was named interim chief for a few months and then 

became the District’s choice for the permanent chief.   

Randy’s full-time job was a regional vice president for AT&T and he 

brought a lot of business knowledge to the district.  His previous 

experience with Fitchburg Fire brought a lot of knowledge of 

government budgets.  

He started as a volunteer firefighter and EMT while still in college, and became a volunteer for Fitchburg 

Fire in 1980.  From 1982-1987 he volunteered for the City of Franklin, WI, fire department, before 

returning to Fitchburg where he continued to volunteer until moving to the Town of Fulton and 

volunteering for the Edgerton Fire Protection District. He has been a member of the Wisconsin State 

Firefighters Association, the Wisconsin State Fire Chiefs Association (WSFCA), the International 

Association of Fire Chiefs, and the Wisconsin Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS) at the state level.  

He served as treasurer for the WSFCA as well as executive director of the WSFCA Foundation. He was 

vice-president of MABAS for several years.  At the local level he has also been involved with the Dane 

County Fire Chiefs Association, the Rock County Fire Officers Association and the Jefferson Fire Chiefs. In 

2019 he was named Volunteer Fire Chief of the Year by the Wisconsin State Fire Chiefs Association. 

In 2018, Randy and his deputy chief, Jason Russ, worked to obtain paramedic level of service for the 

District ambulances, which took effect January 1, 2019.  

In 2022, the municipalities served by the Milton Fire Department petitioned to join the Edgerton Fire 

Protection District.  With Randy’s experience of corporate mergers while at AT&T, he guided the 

municipalities of both the Edgerton and Milton fire departments to work together to integrate the 

Milton Fire Department into the Edgerton Fire Protection District, which took effect February 1, 2023. 

After the integration, members of the department and the District Board voted on a new name to 

rebrand the combined department – Lakeside Fire-Rescue. 
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From the September 14, 2016, Edgerton Reporter: 
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From the January 25, 2017, issue of the Edgerton Reporter: 
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From the Edgerton Reporter, July 17, 2019 issue: 

 


